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Terry E. Krieg, CPA

Certified Public Accountant

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorabla Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cotati
Cotali, California

Report on the Financial Statements

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cotali, California, as of and for the
year snded June 30, 2015, and the related notes {o the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Cotali's basic financial statements as listed in the Tabla of Contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemants

Management is respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of Amerlca; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant ta the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit In
accordance with audited standards generally accepted in the United States of Ameilca and the standards
applicahle to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that [ plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are frea from material misstatement.

An audit ivolves performing procedures to obtain sudii evidence about the ameounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of matarial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or srror. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal contral relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpossé of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal cantrol. Accordingly, | express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statemants,

1 hafieve that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for my audit
opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activilies, the business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Cotati, Califomia as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in its
financlal position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of America.

131-A Stony Circle, Suite 500§ Santa Rosa, California 95401
F.707-644.5684  E:Kriegcpa@msn.com




Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 5G lo the financial statements, in the June 30, 2015 fiscal year, the City adopted new
accounting guidance set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. My opinion is not modified with respect to this mattar.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 14, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 47 through 49,
the schedule of funding progress on page 50, and the schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability and
retirement plan confributions on pages 51 and 52, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical eontext.

| have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responsas to my inquiries, the basic financial stalements, and other knowledge | obtained during my audit of the
basic financial statemants. | do not exprass an gpinion or provide any assurance on the infermation because the
limited procedures do not provide me with sufficlent evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was condtcted for the purpose of forming  opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Colali's basic finandial statements. The accompanylng nonmajor fund combining financial statements
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are nat a required part of the basic financial statements,
The nenmajor fund combining financial statements Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates direcily to Ihe underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stalements,
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare tha basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audifing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the nonmajor fund combining financial statements are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmant Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report, dated October 26, 2015, on
my consideration of the City of Cotali's internal control aver financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of
that report Is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal cantrol over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Sjw(cfards in o}Tidgring the City of Cotali’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Santa Rosa, Galifornia
October 28, 2015




 Management Discussion and Anlysis

. '__':Thls Seotlon of the Clty of Cotatl s annual fman |al report presents our dlscussmn and' analyers of the
: Cltys fmanmal performance durmg the flscai year that ended on June 30 2015 Please read |t |n
5 : .conJunct:on wrth the Cltys fmancral statements whzch follow th:s sect[on '

: Government wrde Fmanclal e

lose of the flscaE
S year, the assets of, the C[ty
e exceeded lrabliltres by $32. 5
e _:mlihon (Known as total net
3 p03|ton in the government—
wide) .
“As of June 30 2015 the
- City's: Govemmental
: "Aottvxtres reported a net
~ .. positon of $16.4 million. -
e As of.lune 30, 2015 the-
o '_Citys Busrness Type
S ”ctrwtues (Water and Sewer
) reported a net




_ Managoment Discusson and Anayss_

presents combinmg statements for non major governmental funds The basrc fmancrai statements__ _{ . '
mclude two klnds of statements that present different vrews of the Crty : ' L

The ﬂrst two statements are govemment W[de f;nancral statements that provrde both iong
' _Z:term and short term mformatlon about the Citys overall fmanolai status ' : _
The remamlng statements are fund flnancral statements that focus on mdlwdual parts of the o
: "Clty government reportrng the Cltys operatlons |n more detatl than the government-wzde o
: :_statements i Erai e _ o . :
."_The governrnental funds statements tell how general government servrces Ilke publlo safety}-‘-_

Proprietary fund o
':"statements offer short—
and Iong term frnancral
“information about the
' 'actlwt;es the i
---._government operates
- like businesses, such
‘asthewaterand = .°
: _'__w'a'ste'w'ate'r"sysitem. e

_The fmanmal statements also S
_:ln'o!ude notes that explafn _ :
some of the mformatlon |n the
_ :=_f|nan0|ai statements and _
' 'provnde rnore deta:fed data The
statements are foliowed by a.
seetion of requured SRR
suppiementary mformatlon that
further explains and supports
:__._the mformatlon in the flnancral
~ statements.  In addition to -
:'{'}these requ:red elements we
~‘have mcluded a sectlon wrth
"'-*oombmmg statements that
_..;_prowde details about the Cltys - '
. non- ma;orfunds each of Wthh
“are added together and - B
: :'-presented in smgle columns in the_ o
--basuc flnanc:lat statements :

'_ '- ':contents of each of the statements '




__ Management Discussion and Analysis

w Ma’ju'r'l'i‘eétﬁres of City of (otati's Goyemmént-w_ide and Fund Ft_nantial_smtementt_ G .

- Fund Statements -

5 -'P'm'}i.rtétary Fu'n'cts:-- B

S _ " Government-Wide Statements = GﬁVértlltléttfﬂi Funds :

eactunhes of the Clty'thatare not .f . ; Acuwbes the Clt}’ operatessrmr!ar tu pnvate
ief _iyorfdumar_',',suchas potce -husmesses ﬂlewater andwastewatersystems e
'and parks . ' o

: _:..'Scb[té :'f" P - Ent]re Cityguve:rnnteqt}" g :

e Balance_s eet

"2 Required financial statements : L i__State_merztof NetPnsmu ]
e '_:State_meutofarﬁvjﬁeé_.'_ o

;Accountmg hasas anct measurement Atcrual accuunhng and EC(]nUI]‘t]C
' ..-focus T R S resourcesfncus :

¥ _'.Type0f:as'se_t,_f:l_i:al'1iiityinfumétibh . AII assets and llabllztles,imthf'maa_lcwl
IR .'andcapltat and'h 'tterma'dl -
v "_”term ;

o Typeof inﬂmv/uutﬂnwi_nfnrmeti_dn A]lrevenues and expenses during
5 L R year,regardless of whencash]s
SR recewedorpald

o -_'.Go'ver'n 'rnent-:Wide'S.tatements. :

The government«wrde statements report mformatlon about the Ctty as a whole us:ng aooountmg :
L methods simifar to those used by prrvate seotor oompanies The stetement of net pos;tnon moludes
'_aII the government S assets and llabtlfties A]t of the ourrent year S revenues and expenses are

_ ::The two government wzde statements report the Clty S. net posat'
A posrtion the d:tferenoe between the Crtys assets and liabilitie

L - Governmental act;vrtres Most 'the_Cltys __asrc ser\nces are mcluded here'such as pol:oe S
' streets parks oommunlty devetopment and generai admmrstration Property taxes sales i
. taxes, and state and federal grants finance most of triese activities. ' - o




'--.'ﬁ'Mahégéhiféht ﬁD’iSéGS'si'_b'hﬁé’na}iAﬁély'Si_g o -

Busmessntype acta\ntles The City charges fees to"oustomers to help |t cover the costs of
’ certain servrces lt provrdes The Cltys water and wastewater system are anoluded here E

o5 -'.'Fund Flnancral Statements 2 :

; '_".'fThe fund'ﬁnanolaflstatements provude more eta:led mformatlon about the Cltys most srgnifl_o_an_t o

: fu_nds ~__not the Clty as a whole Funds are accounting devrces that the Clty uses to keep track of
g specmc sources of fundmg and spendrng for partlcular purposes The more srgmﬂcant governmental

add:tlonal mformatron at the bottom of the governmental funds statement or on the 3" 5
i '}'subsequent page that exp!ams th reIataonsth (or differences) between them

Proprletary funds -..ZServroes for:whlch:the Crty charges customers a fee are generaily
e : ;_reported in propnetary funds Prop_rl_e_tary funds Erke the government»wrde statements

' provrde both_long and_short term fma_ncral mformation _ :j._':' '

the Clty_s :enterpnse funds '(one type of proprletary fund) are the same as |ts busmess type




7 ASSETS ;

Management mseussron'an'_ajmysg SRS

CITY OF COTATI S NET POSITEON
. Summary of Net Posﬁnon
As of June 30, 2014- and 2015

[m nulhon do]lars)

: Governrhental g 'Bu'einess Type X
- Activities . i Actmtles '

TOTAL Pl I’ercentage
~io[z018 ..:I 2014 || 201_5 l 2014 2015 .| 2014 ]

Change

U010 96 104 104 202 200 0 0%

o Currentand OtherAssetS : : : ; . S
Ba 5B sanl SR 69%

: Long Term Recexvables

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RF;s'o'UR'cEs s
Pension Plan, Contrlbunonsand A S A L R S
"Tlmlng D:fferences _: i ._ i o o . .-'0_.8_ . . : B : 01 . 09 : : 0.0 . - 00%

]A__BILI'I'IES SRS : BT L R - R U R LR O T
- Cufrént Liabflites oo ooiqz e o030 03 s a5 Y12 Co250%
NoncurrentLlabillteS o :._ : - R : 11.8- S 13 L 125 daq
" TotalLlablhnes gy .:: R : f . L : ;.. 12.6 ._: E 12.7 3. :1..4_ e B s 14__0 B 14_3 S

'DEFERREDlNFLOWSOFRESOURCES SeneEEEE T SR e e e
Pensmn Plan lefelences in Proyecbons S : : "1._2 00 L0200 0.0 g i 00 1 0.0% '

_NET.PDSITION R
"InvestedmCapitalAssetsnet S R ERRUR R e G I s SRR
ofrelateddebt LDt 138 00133000 75 0 7370 213000206 0 34%
Restricted 0 00 i T BR g el 68 114 128 0 -109%
Unrestricted s h o T T T B8 T RS 0 02 3 BA6%
Total Net Position - " " 0164 16,0 16 161 < 325 0 32l 12%

o Analys 8 of the net nosmon

: '-'Total net posatlon of the primary government mcreased by $O 4 mlilion thls year._ Tota[ assets "3 :
_fj: _mcreased by $ 6 miliron .and total Ilabliltles decreased by $O 3 mllilon. Deferred outﬂows of _'
= -.'resources mcreased $ 9 mil!lon and deferred mﬁows of resources mcreased $1 4 mrmon FRE

_Govemmenta] actlwtles

o Net pos;ton of the C:tys governmental aotw:tles mcreased to $16 4 milllon from $16 o m:lilon in the:'- '_ e
- prior year. About 53% of the total assets relatmg to governmentai aoti\ntzes are represented by cash, e

o $6 3 miHIOI‘l reiated to net penszon llablhty

f’_mvestments and reoelvables wrth the remammg 47% conSIStmg of capital assets that are not SR
“available to fund operataone The Crty has about $11 4 mzlllon noncurrent l:abliltles WhICh mcludes i

435 433 76 U314 06 0 39%
294 0 287 176 . A77 A0 464 13%. |




| __'Man'agement Discussion and Analysis

g Busrness—type actlvrtles

R The net posrtlon of our busmess type actrvrtles of remamed at $16 1 mlliron when compared to the'_'z )
"'.prlor ﬂscai year These resources can not be used for governmental actrwtres The Crty can only use P '

e caprta! Improvements to those systerns The Iong term debt reported |n the Clty s busmess type REE
e -._actlwtres rncludes $1 1 mrlllon |n net pens:on Eaablilty ' B el

CITY OF COTAT[ Rt N
Sl Changes in Net Posmon Sl
s For the Flscal Years Ended }une 30 2014 and 2015

[m mllEmn dotlars] :

Governmental Busmess Ty'pe :
Actmtles : E :Z Actmtles

: 2015 [ 2014 1 2015 I--2014--.:.'

i TOTAL

Change o

2015 1 2014

'."IREVENUES S
E:ogl_‘am Revenues R i
" "Charges for Services . S
‘Operating Grants and Contrlbutlons L
_ Capltal Grants and Contnbuhons e
: Generai Revennes R
__: Property'l‘axes o
: OtherTaxes SRy
S Other S
o Total Revenues : 'j

- EXPENSES - ;
' General Government
Sl Pubhc Safety
5 '-: Publlc Works -
Commumty Development
o Water: o : :
- Sewer
: lnterest :
K Tota[ Expenses

'_ Revenue over. (unde}) expenses
R Spemal Items paR A

Ane Tlansfers Gl : S :-__::. o
IR Adjusted &Restated FY 14 (Foomote 5 G} el (6 7}
i S Change innet position e G 04 E(4E)
e Netp051t10n, begmmng ofperlod restated* e 16.0 SU20.5
P Netposmon, end ofpenod TS 164 0 160

o AnaEvsrs of the changes in net nos:tron i

Total government wrde revenues of the prrmary government decreased $1 2 mrElion a 9 9% :
decrease from prror year and totai expenses mcreased by $1 1 mrilion an 11 8% mcrease These :
; changes are discussed m more detail below : AR - : :

'.'-.these net assets to f;nance the contlnumg operatrons of the water and wastewater systems arld for i G

; Percentage [




'{l-ivrajriagemen't Discussion and Analysis =~

Governmental aCtIVItleS

Totai revenues for governmental actiwtles decreased $ 8 mlihon from the pnor year a 9. 6% L :
decrease Total expenses for_ governmentai actrvaties mcreased $1 3 mlilron from the prior year,

: --ECapltaI grants_and contrrbutrons revenue decreased$i 5 _mr_lhon from .prlor year Iarge]y due to the
"completion of th 1t ' - :

Property Tax revenue |n 2014 ist igher compared to 2015 due to a one tlme prcperty tax resrdual
dlst'nbutlo _received by the Crty in 2014 n the amount of $515 thousand Without this one tlme __:
drstnbut_ _n in 2014 property tax revenue lncreased as a'result of recoverlng real estate market and
mcreasrng property assessed valuatrons

Other taxes mcreased by $ 7 mrllron a 20% mcrease from prror year due !argely to the Crty s
Measure G one percent (.‘L%) transactions and use'tax -whlch generated 3$1 3 mlltzon m__addrtional
: sales tax o =

expense decreased due to reduction in water production.




Government-Wide Revenues by Source -
$10.8 Million

Other
1%

& Charges for Services

B Operating Grants and
Contributions

B Capital Grants and
Contributions

& Property Taxes

@ Other Taxes

B Other

Operating Grants
and Contributions
3%

Capital Grants and
Contributions
2%

Government-Wide Expenses by
Source - $10.4 Million

Interest

B General Government

@ Public Safety

& Public Works

B8 Community Development
B Water

B\ Sewer

B Interest

Community

Development
6%




- ;-:_;_spendlng for partlcular purposes The fund fin C|aE statement foc on. rndlwduals parts of_

o ':ODeratlons m more detall than

o o Govemmental Funds |

: f :-The Cltysgovernmental funds R _
o _-"-'j::prov:de information on near-
~ term inflows, outflows and -
R balances of spendabie
- resources. The City’s - i
L governmentai funds reported B
o -a comblned fund baiance at: '

: f“m:lflon a shght decrease of
- $39 thousand over the end of -
o the prevrous frsoal year '

S .The General Fund is the chlef o

S reflects a slight decrease of
- $207 thousand in fund -

' _""_'_prOJects and lmprovements

Management Dlscussmn and AnaIyS|s

S FINANC!AL ANALYSIS OF TH_E :CITY'S_ FUND STATEMENTS

Funds are accountmg devrces that the 'Crty uses to keep track of -specaflc sources of funding and .'

" '_:'government repor’ang Clty

o the governmentmde
: :_-statements e

June 30 2015 of $9. 26"

i :operatmg fund of the Crty and e ;

__]'_._.'-_baiance The decrease can be e :
e mostly attnbuted to Varfous Clty oapltal '

e '.:.".The Citys other major funds mcludes Enclusronary Housmg Fund W|th a year—end fund ba]ance of...'-:.;'

3. 24 miliron and the South Sonoma Busmess Park With a year-end f_und baiance of $850 thousand : Sl

_ he_City s non major funds ended the ﬂscai year 2014 20 5 Wlth a'fund balance of $2 2 m[{hon an__j:'
-mcrease of $278 thousand over the end of the frscal N_!ost of these resources are restncted for -
_:'on street pI’OJECtS commumty deveiopment prOJects and other spec;al purposes




SSIon and Anal

'::'{_ Over the course of the year the Crty Councri rev:sed the C:ty budget severa! trmes These budget
"'amendments fall mto'two_cetegones_

. . Changes made at the midyear budget revrew for unantlcrpated revenues and costs
e Increases |n appropr;atlons to. prevent budget overruns e Ry

At the end of 2015 the C|ty s
Bl had :nvested $38 8 mrilron :
" in‘a broad range_ of
capital assets :_ nciudlng
equi_p_r__n_ent,_. ehicles, ' :
:'fburldmgs park facrilties
and water and i
- wastewater systems
Because caprta] costs of
“‘waste. water systems
~and construction in -

= ‘progress, there was a: o
-:_netrncrease i change o
_in'the total net: S
mvestment rn caprtal i
'?.-assets B

Thrs year s major capital




= Management Di'sc'u"ssi_o_n 'and Analysis';'_' e

Below isa table of the Clty s Capltal Assets as of June 30 2014 and 2015 Addltlonal mformat:on . B -
T relatlve to capltal assets is contamed in Note D.of the general purpose flnanCIal stetements T

CITY OF COTATI

Capltal Assets o
As of]une 30 2014 and 2.015 S

i{m malhon doilars}

| Governmental | Businesws Type | TOTAL
ol 2015 ] 2014 - '_":_:-“.‘2_0_15;:_! 2014 = -'-'2015_:_--:'_1 2014 |

o Capltaiassets I e
o Land : '. e RS Y W S
Constructronm progress G SUUB0L 2T
Bquipment . 10 0 04 06 TR
 WaterandSewerlines . 108 108 108
S _-lmprovements R C 0495 04 04 "j: 108
Total Capltal Assets B H 240'--- S 435 13.0 "-"-'-3‘-.3'8.8

- _LOng-term oébt” |

o f 3 "South Sonoma Busmess Park

i ':"As of June 30 2015 a property fa|led to pay assessment charges related to the South Sonoma '-;:
RER Busmess Park Assessment Dlstnct Legal proceedangs are in process agalnst the property owner 1o
o 3__cure all outstanding assessments mcludlng penalt|es mterest and all assoc:ated costs :

S '.Net Pensron Llabillty

b 'GASB Statement l\lo 68 srgnlflcantly revamped the accountmg and fmancral reportlng for”' :
;--"government employers that provrde pensron beneflts and requrnng a net pensron ilablilty 'on_the
i __'-statement of net posmon A net pensrcn Isabrl;ty of $7 4 mllllon is reported as of June 30 2015

i The Clty annually prepares a multi year ﬁnanmal plan WhICh focuses on long term ﬂnancial \nablilty
: ' "_'i_'and allows dec:smn makers to better understand the fmpact of poilcy decrsmns Multl—year plannlng :
' o provrdes both an early warn:ng of adverse frnancral trends and | more time to |mplement changes to
E ensure better outcomes Budget development is gwded by a senes of polrcres adopted by the Clty
',_;Councrl whlch gurdes Iong term plannlng, minlmum reserve Ievels employee compensatlon cash T
_and debt management mformatton technology and utrhty rates The budget was based on these key .
:'.3a Sumptlons ! : . S . : L . : N R o R




Management Di_.scﬁussrcfsh -and;An'aryérs L

hn g-' Property Tax—The budget proleotron for 2015 16 assumes an morease in property tax_'_f AT,
o colleotrons Wthh moiudes the Crty s port[on of assessed value from dlssoEved RS

S redevelopment proleot areas now

iy '-subjeotto county -wide revenue i L
. fsharmg The Clty has foreoasted an
S 'average growth rate of 3% for future
"3':j_-years L FERREERS

8 _':}';.-Sa!es Tax«The budget prOjection for
i ---':j2015 16 assumes continued growth
“inthe. area due 1o hlgher oollectrons
. "'from the Measure G transaotlons and

'_'j'-use tax. Measure G replaced the -
'Measure A tax and set the saEes tax rate at _
o 59 25% for mne years endmg 2023 IVIeasure G_ supports' he fi '!l_ range of munrolpa servrces

0 '___Capltal Outlay—The Crty approprlated about $7 5 mrEllon to fund varrous oapltal prolects
= R '_mcludlng street pavement marntenance park |m rovements,'d wntown SpeCIfIC plan water
and sewer |mprovement prOJects S T

. .'-"-.-':-S;ICONTACTING THE cmr's i-fFINANCIAL MANAGEME_NT

-:i'_'This fmancral report ls demgned to' provrde our crtlzens taxpayers customers and mvestors and SR RHRSRRN B
R _-'credltors wrth a general overview of-the Cltys finances:and to demonstrate the City's accountablhty e N :
2o for the: money it ‘receives.- If -you : have questrons about thls report or: need additional financial ¢ gl
Qzlnformatlon contaot Norm Veloso Dlre or of . dmr Servrces City. of Cotat1 01 W Slerra Ave,._' SRR
Cotatr CA 94931 v A : ' Hin




CITY OF COTATI
Statement of Net Poslfion
June 30, 2015

Governmental Business-
Activities Type Actlivities Total
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and investments § 8,450,474 $ 3222604 11,673,168
Net recelvables 1,092,150 482,437 1,574,587
Inetrmal balances {303,750) 303,750
Prepayments 60,517 " 60,517
Total current assels 9,209,394 4,008,681 13,308,272
Nonowrrent assets:
Gash and cash equivaients 745,148 6,153,822 6,898,970
Long-term notes receivable 578,697 - 678,697
Other long-term receivables 4,825,000 - 4,825,000
Delinquent assessments 14,301 - 114,301
Net aapital assets 13,863,366 7,474,048 21,337,414
Total nonsurrent assets 20,123,812 13,627,870 33,751,382
Total assets $ 29422903 § 17,636,751 47,059,654
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Pension plan contdbutions and
timing differences $ 765,164 $ 108,582 §63,716
LABILITIES
Current Eabilltles:
Accounts payable $ 424,235 $ 89,721 513,956
Accrued [labilities 34,889 888 35,777
Duse other govermmments 423,788 - 423,788
Compensaled absences 80,000 182,810 242,810
Deposits 36,765 75,190 111,988
Accrued interest payable 104,542 - 104,542
Bonds due within one year 135,000 - 135,000
Tatal current liabiliies 1,219,218 348,609 1,567,828
Long-term labllitles due in mare than one year:
Spedgial assessment bonds 4,690,000 - 4,580,000
Compensated absences 268,646 - 268,646
Net pension liability 6,362,224 1,084,186 7,456,420
Net ofher post employment benefit obligation 63,588 - 63,588
Total long-term liabilities 11,384,458 1,004 196 12,478,654
Tolal [fabilitles 12,603,677 1,442,805 14,046,482
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension plah differences in projections 1,176,729 210,813 1,387 542
MET POSITION
Met Investment In capital asssts 13,863,366 7,474,048 21,337 414
Rastricted for:
Capital projects - 6,163,822 6,163,822
Housing 3,252,244 - 3,252,244
Dabt service 850,397 - 850,397
Public safaty 44,420 - 44,420
Parks 637,761 - 637,761
Recyaling 116,283 - 115,283
Slreels 350,947 - 350,947
Pubiic communications 2,332 - 2332
Unrestricted {2,718,089} 2,463,815 (255,274)
Tata) net posltion 18,397,661 16,081,685 32,489,346

See accompanying notes to the basic linancial statements
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ASSETS
Cash and investrents
Taxes receivabis
Oue from other governmenls
Assessments receivable

Deliquant asseasments redsivable

Notes receivable
Prepayments
Due from ather funds

Total assots

LIABILITIES

Liabifities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitles
Due to other funds
Dua other governments
Deposits

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES:

Long-term receivaibies

Fund balances:

Nomnspendatie

Restricted for affordable housing
Restricted for public safety
Restricted for strests
Restricted for parks

Restricted public education
Resfricted for debt service
Resiricted for recycling
Restricted for capital projects
Committed for special projects
Gomaitted for emergencles
Unassigned

Total fund bakahces

Totat liabilities, deferred inflaws of resources

and fund balances

Total Governmental Fund Balances

CITY OF COTATI

Balance Sheet

Goverhmental Funds

June 30, 2015
South Sonoma

Inciusionary  Business Park Other Total
Housing Debt Service Goverhmental Governmentai

General Fund Fund Fune Funds Funds
§ 2188704 3 3241600 $ 745,148 § 3020187 § 0,196,622
829,937 - - 829,937
- - - 262,213 262,213
- - 4,825,000 - 4,828,000
- B 111,801 - 111,301
28,000 - - 560,697 578,607
80,517 - - - 60,617
425878 - - - 426,878
$ 3633096 $ 32410603 3 5681445 § 3833077 8 16,288,165
$ 183444 % - % 6052 $ 224,739 % 424,235
34,888 - - - 34,888
303,760 - - 425,878 779,628
B - - 423,788 423,788
36,785 - - - 36,765
568,848 - 6,052 1,074,408 1,649,305
- - 4,825,000 560,697 5,876,607
60,517 - - . 60,517
- 3,241,603 ~ 10,641 3,262,244
- - - 44,420 44,420
- - - 360,947 350,947
- . - 2,108 2,108
- - - 2,332 2,382
- - 850,397 - a60, 307
- - B 115,263 115,283
- - - 637,761 837,761
45,000 - - 1,044,483 1,089,483
120,000 - - - 120,000
2,738,671 - - - 2,738,671
2,964,188 3,241,603 850,397 2,207,975 8,264,163
$ 36533036 § 08941603 & 5601449 $ 3,833,077 % 16,289,165

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because;
Capital assets used In governmental activities are not current
financtal resources and therefore are not reported in the funds
Other long-term assets are not avallable to pay for current-petiod
expenditures and are therefore reported as deferred inflows of resources In Lhe funds
The net pension labitity dees not require the use of current financial resotrces and is therefore

net reported In the funds

The deferred Inflows and ouiflaws related to the nel pension liability do not raquire the use
of surrani financial resources and are not reporied in the funds
Interest payable is acorued as a a liabilitity in the staternent of net position
but is reported as a liabHity in the funds only when due
The net obligation for othor post amployment benefits does not reqitire the use of
cuerent financial resources and is therefore not reported in the funds
Some liabilities including bonds, claims and compansated absences
ara not due and payable in the current periad and therefore are not reported in the funds

Net Positlon of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staternents
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$ 9764163

13,863,366
5,375,607
{6,362,224)
{421,566)
{104,542)

{63,588)

{5.153,646)

$ 16,397,661




REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other laxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmental
Interest and rents
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General governimeni
Public safety
Communily devetepment
Public works
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiancy} of revenuss over
expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin
Transfers out

Total other flnancing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balances
Fund balances, July 1

Fund baiances, June 30

CITY OF COTATI

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Endded June 30, 2016

South Sonoma

Inclustonary  Business Park Other Total
Housing Debt Service Governmental Governmantal
General Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 1,266,681 5 -~ % - % - 1,266,681
3,615,732 - - 51,628 3,667,261
110,345 - - - 110,345
402,151 - - - 402,151
96,703 - - 12,732 109,435
118,937 - - 456,077 575,014

92,831 8,860 775 3,841 106,107
180,035 1,165 458,607 279,249 008,956
188,487 - 150,159 3,249 341,005
6,061,612 8,825 609,541 806,677 7487855
1,165,475 205411 71,206 - 1,442,092
2,801,788 . - 30,043 2,831,831
608,773 - - 899 810,472
794,819 “ - 60,635 855,454
812,008 - - 817,765 1,429,863

- - 430,000 - 130,000

- - 317,850 - 317,850

6,183,953 205,411 519,056 709,142 7,817,862
(122,141) (195,586) 90,485 97,535 {129,707)
586,975 - - 697,493 1,264 468
(652,493) - {5,000} (5186,475) (1,173,868)
(85,518) - {5,000) 181,018 90,500

(207 658) {195,566) 85,485 278,553 {39,207
3,171,847 3,437,189 764,912 1,829,422 0,303,370

$ 2,964,188 § 3241603 § 850,297 § 2207875 9,264,163

See accompanying notes to the basic financial slatements
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GITY OF COTATI
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Mat Change in Fund Balances - Tota! Govemmenial Funds

Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the
staternenl of activitles are different because:

Govermnmental funds report capifal outlays as expenditures.

Howevaer, in the statement of activities, the cost of those

assets is allocated over thelr estimated useful lives as

depreclation expense. This is the amount by which capiial

outlays{$ 1,508,250} exceeded depreciation ($800,805) in the currant period.

Governmental funds report fong-term receivables but defer revenue from them
until collections are actually received. In the statement of activities, principat
collections on recelvables are not reported as revenues. Disbursemants
made for long-term loans are recorded as expenditures in the funds, but

are not recorded as additions to receivables in the statermant of activities

Changes in the net pension liability and related defered inflows and deferred
outflows do not use or provide cumant financial resources and are therefore
nor reported in the funds

Disposals of outdalred capital assels do use cuirent financial resources and are
therefore not reparted In the funds

Govemmental funds report payments on long-term debt as expenditures,
bui such payments reduce llabilities in the slatement of net position and
tharafore are not recerded as expanses i the statement of activities

The net obligation for other postemploymaent benafits does not require the
use of current financial resources and is therefore not reporied in the funds

Govarnmental funds repori interest expenditures when payment is due, buf
interest expense ls accrued in the statement of aclivities

t.ong-term ohligations such as clairms and compensated are recorded in the
governmenial funds only when due, but are recorded as
liabifities in the statement of net position when incurred

Net adjustment fo reconcile to changes in nel position

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activilies

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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$  (39,207)

707,445

(118,900)

(83,600)

(121,052)

130,000

(6,129)

2,816

{76,247}

436,333

$ 396,128
e i o=




CITY OF COTATY
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

Enterprise Funds
Waler Wastewater Totals
ABSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,064,083 $ 2,158,614 $ 3722804
Accourds recelvable 180,207 292,230 482 437
Due from other funds - 303,750 303,750
Dua from other governmenis - - -
Total current assets 1,254,290 2,754,581 4,008,881
Noncurrent assets:
Other assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 745,061 5,408,761 6,163,822
Nei other assets 745,061 5,408,761 8,153,822
Capital assets:
Reservairs 1,650,971 - 1,650,871
Pipslines and meters 3,071,220 4,642,034 7,713,254
Waler wells 1,462,219 - 1,462,219
imrovements 269,666 144,154 413,820
Equipment 200,310 703,537 593,847
Less accunmulated depreciation (3,345,450} {2,674,520) (6,019,970)
3,398,938 2,815,205 6,214,147
Construction in progress 950,315 308,592 1,259,807
Net capital asssls 4,349,251 3,124,787 7.474,048
Total noncurrent assets 5,004,312 8,533,558 13,627,870
Total assets $ 6,348,602 $ 11,288,149 $ 17,636,751
DEFFERED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURGES
Pension Plan confribulions % 50,034 $ 37,745 3 87,779
Pension Plan diffarences in propartions 11,841 8,932 20,773
Total deferred tutflows § 61,875 b 46,677 $ 108,552
LIABILITIES
Current liabilifies:
Accounts payable $ 80,492 $ 9,229 $ 89,721
Accrued ligbliitias 888 - 888
Compensated absences 104,624 76,186 182,810
Deposils 76,190 - 75,190
Total current liabllities 261,194 87,415 348,609
Long-ferm Liabilities
Net Pansion Liability 623,693 470,503 1,094,196
Total labilities 884,887 557,918 4,442 B80S
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCGES
Pension Plan differences in projections 120,163 90,650 210,813
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels 4,349,254 3,124,797 7,474,048
Resiricted 745,061 5,408,761 6,153,822
Unreslricted 311,115 2,152,700 2,463,815
Total net position $ 5405427 $ 10,686,258 $ 16,091,685

See accompanying notes to the basic financlal statements
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CITY OF COTATI

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater Totals
QOPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,195,760 $ 2,047,681 $ 3,243,431
Other operaling revenues 100,789 33,852 134,641
Total operating revenues 1,286,539 281,533 3,378,072
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 373,688 318,950 692,638
Contractual services 112,705 39,412 182117
Intergovernmental treatment costs - 1,525,266 1,625,266
Utilitles 38,094 2,419 40,613
Purchased water 415,035 “ 415,935
Supplies and materials 111,918 93,624 206,642
insurance, claims, and expenses 21,2583 20,134 41,387
Depreciation 215,453 153,696 369,149
Tolal operating expenses 1,280,046 2,153,501 3,442 547
Operating income (oss) 7,493 (71,968} (64,475)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 4 B33 20,216 25,049
Net non-operating reverues {(expenses) 4,833 20,216 25,049
Income befare contribufions and transfers 12,326 {61,762) {39,426)
Contributions and transfers
Capital contributions 30,685 59,872 90,457
Transfers out {37,500} {63,000) {90,500}
Total contributions and transfers {6,815} 6,872 (43)
Change in net position 5411 {44,880) (39,489)
Total net position, July 1 5,400,016 10,731,138 16,131,164
Total net position, June 30 $ 5405427 $ 10,686,258 $ 16,091,885

See accompanying nates to the basic financial statemants




CITY OF COTAT!
Statement of Cash Flows
Propriatary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTWITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Paymentis lo employees

Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Adevances o other funds
Transfers to other funds

Nat cash provided by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash provided by (usad for) capital and
refated financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest receipts

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash aquivalents-beginning of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents-end of the year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Totals
$ 1,394,213 $ 2,146,153 $ 3,540,366
(705,460) (1,679,434) (2,384,894)
(375,004) {289,888) (664,982)
313,659 176,831 490,490
- {303,750) (303,750)
{37,500) {53,000 {90,500)
(37,500) {356,750) (394,250)
30,585 59,872 90,457
(184,597) (368,172) {552,769)
(154,012) (308,300) {462,312}
4,833 20,216 25,048
4,833 20,216 25,048
126,980 (468,003) (341,023)
1,682,164 8,035,375 9,717,539
$ 1,803,144 $ 7,567,372 $ 9,376,516




CITY OF COTATI
Statement of Gash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 39, 2015

Reconciliation of operating income {loss) to
net ¢ash provided by operating activities:
Opsrating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
tiet cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Recseivables, net
Accounts payable
Net pension Hability
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used for)

operating activities

Noncash capital financing acfivities:
None. :

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Totals

$ 7,493 3 (71,968) 3 (64,475)
215,453 153,606 369,149
06,484 64,620 161,104
(4,755) 1,421 (3,334)

9,461 7,138 16,598
{10,477) 21,824 11,447

$ 313,658 $ 176,831 $ 490,490

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staterments
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CITY OF COTATI
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2015
Private Purpose
Trust
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,817,425
Cash with trustees 696,047
Accounts receivabla 41
Notes receivable 1,288,571
Capital assets: Land 2,549,491
Capital assets: Not being depreciated 1,340,777
Discount on sale bonds 97,343
Total assets S 8,790,685
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 35,105
Pue to Other Governments:
Sonoma Caounty 1,255,776
Interest payable 163,333
Tax allocation bonds 9,950,000
Total liabilities 11,404,214
NET POSITION {DEFICIT)
Held in trust for successor agency {2,613,519)
Total Net Position (deficit) (2,613,519)

See accompanying notes to the basic finandal statements
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CITY OF COTAT!
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Private Purpose

Trust
ADDITTIONS:
Net investment Income (joss} S 7,567
Interest on long-term notes 25,498
Reimbursements 44,931
Distributions for enforceable obligations 928,795
Total additions 1,006,791
DEDUCTIONS:
Bond interest 497,402
Administrative costs 263,040
Distribution to other taxing entitfes 95,840
Payments on pass through agreements 44,852
901,134
increase|decrease) in net position 105,657
Net position, June 30, 2014 (2,719,176)
Net position (deficit), June 30, 2015 3 (2,613,519)

See accotmpnaying notes to the basic financlal statements
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1.

CITY OF COTATI
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A.  Reporting Entity

The City of Cotati is 2 municipal corporation governed by an elacied five member City Council.
The accompanying financial staternents present the government and its component unils, entities
for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. The city has no component
yrits that are blended or discretely presenied in these financial stalements, The City's former
redevelopment agency was dissolved by law effective February 1, 2012. The Cily slacted to
serve as the successor custodian of the residual assets and obligations of the former Ageney.
Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and finansial transactions of the former Agency were
transferred on the affective date to a fiduciary fund (private purpose rust) and are accounted for
in these financial statements as a fiduclary fund. Theses fiduciary funds are excluded from the
Clty's government-wide statement of net position, statement of activities and fund statements
because fiduciary funds are not available for use by the City.

B, Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financlal statements (i.e,, the slatement of net position and the statement
of changes in net position} report information on all of the nonfiductary aclivities of the City. For
the most pari, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally ere supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reparted separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those thal are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges io
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benafit from goods, servicas, or privileges
provided by a given function ar segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricled lo
mesting the operational or capital requirements of a particular funclion or segment, Taxes and
ather itemns not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Seperate financial statements are provided for govermmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual snterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurament Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentafion

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the. economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propriefary fund financial
staternents. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the liming of relaied cash flows. Properly faxes are recagnized as
ravenues in the year for which they are levied. Granis and simifar ifems are recognized as
revenua as soon as all eligibifity requiraments imposed by the provider have been metl.

Govarnmental fund financlal statements are reported using the current financial resources
measuremen! focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenuas are recognized as
soon as they are hoth measurable and aveilable. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the surrent period or soon enough thersaftar to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
coliected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a tiability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Howsver, debt service
expenditures, as well as expendifures refated o compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
26




CITY OF COTAT!
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continusd)

Property taxes, sales taxes, other taxes, ficenses, and interest associated with the current fiseal
period are all considerad to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and avallable only when cash is
received by the government,

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund, it accounts for ail financial
resoircas of the general government, except those required to be accourted for in another fund.
The Gity's Inclusionary Housing Fund ts a special revenus fund used to account for in fieu impact
fees restricted in use to inclusionary housing purposes. The South Sonoma Business Park
special assassment debt service fund used to charge landowners for the financing provided to
develop {he business park. The Train Depot Grant Fund is a special revenue fund used 1o
account for grants restricted for specific purposes.

The Cily reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water fund accounts for the operations of the Cily's water treatment and distribution
system. The wastewaler fund accounts for the operation of the City's wastewater collection
activities.

The City reporls a private purpase trust fund, a fiduciary fund type, to account for all of the assets,
liabilities and financial activity of the successor agency to the Gity's former redevelopment agency
that was dissolved effective February 1, 2012

The City applies all applicable Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASE) Pronouncements
before November 30, 19B% in accounting and reporting for the operation of its proprietary
operations and the provisions of GASB Statement Number 82, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 34, 1989 pronouncements.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions io this general rule are payments-inlieu of taxes and other
charges betwesn the Cily's water and wastewater function and other funclions of the City.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues raported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goads,
sarvices, or privileges providad, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including speclal assessments. Internally dedicated resources ara reported as
general ravenues rather than as program rovenues. Likewise, general revenues include all laxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating fems.
Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenuses of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
sarvices. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the costs of sales and services,
administration costs and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses,
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CITY OF COTATI
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investmenis

The Cily is authorized by its most recent investment policy {o invest in the Stale of California
Local Agency investment Fund, U.S. Treasury bonds, bifis, and notes, obligations issued by US
Government agencies, banker's acceptances, repurchase agreements, and time deposits and
savings and demand accounts.

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Investment Poal
operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the
pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares,

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are represantative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due toffrom other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or "advances toffrom other funds” (lL.e., the nor-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reporled as *due toffrom other
funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activilies and business-type
activities are reparied in the government-wide financial statements as "internat balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable government funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are not shown net of an allowance for uncolisctibles.

Property taxes are levied as of March 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. State
statutes provide that the property tax rate be limited generally to one percent of market vaiue, be
levied by only the County, and be shared by applicable jurisdictions, The County of Scnoma
collects the taxes and distributes them to taxing jurisdiclions on the basis of assessed valuations
subject to voter-approved debt. Property laxes are due on November 1 and March 1, and become
delinquent on December 10 and Aprit 10. The Cily receives property taxes pursuant to an
arrangement with the County known as the “Teeter Plan”, Under the plan, the County assumes
rasponsibility for the collection of delinquent taxes and pays the full allocation to the City. The City
recognizes property tax revenues in the fiscal year in which they are due to the Cily.

3. Inventories and Prepaid liems

All inventories are valued at cost using the firstinfiirst-out (FIFQ) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when used or consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in hoth government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
4. Capital Assefs

Capital agsets, which include property, plani, eguipment, and infrastruciure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar tems), are reported in the applicable governmentaltype or
husiness-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than % 1,000 ($50,000
jor infrastructure type assets) and an eslimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historicat cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Under the
GASB 34 Implementation Rules, the City is a Phase 3 entity and was not required to record
infrastruciure assets existing or acquired prior to July 1, 2002 at the date these new financial
raporting standards were implemerted; and the City has not recorded such assets. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capltalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of the business-lype activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets construeted,

Property, ptand, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 30
Public domain infrasfructure 50
System infrastructure 10-40
Vehicles and equipment 7-10

5. Compensated Absences and Qther Post-Employment Benefits

It is the government's policy to permil employees to accumulate earmned but unused Jeave bank
{vacation and sick pay benefits). There is a liability for a porlion of unpaid accumulated sick leave
since the Gity does have a policy to pay certain amounts when employees separate from service
with the City. All leave bank pay is accrued when incurred In the govermment-wide and proprietary
fund financial stalements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only
if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. The
City's obligation for post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) is reported as a
liability in the government-wide financial statements.

6. Long-term Obligations
in the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund types in the fund finandial
statements, long-ferm debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabililies in the

applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
fet assets.
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CITY OF COTATI
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 36, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
7. Fund Balances — Goveramental Funds

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in dlassifications based primarily on the
extent fo which the City is bound to honor constrainls abaut the specific purposes for which
amounis in those funds can be spent. These classifications include (1) nenspendabie, (2)
restricled, {3} committed, (4) assignad and (5) unassigned amounts.

Nonspendable amounts generally are items not expecied to be converled into cash such as
inventories, prepaid items and long-term recelvables not offset my deferred revenue accounts.
Resiricted amounts include those where constraints placed on the uses of the resources are
extarnally imposed by grantors, contributors, other governments or my faws or regulations.
Committed amounts are those that can only be used for a specific purpose as delermined by the
City Council. Such committed amounts may be redeployed for other uses only by the direction of
the City Council. Assigned amounts are fund balance amounts constrained by the City's infent to
ba used for specific purposes as determined by the City Manager or Director of Administrative
Services. Unassigned amounts are the residual amounts reported only in the general fund or
amounts In funds reporting deficit fund balances. When expenditures are incured for which both
restricted and unrestricted (commilled, assigned or unassigned} amounts are available, the City
considers reslricted amounts lo have been spent first. When expenditures are incurred for which
any class of unrestricted fund balance could be used, the City considers committed amounts
would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts a, and then unassigned amounts.

8. Comparative Data

Comparative fotal data for the prior year have been presented in order to provide an
understanding of the changes in net assets. Also, certain emounts presented in the prior year
data have been reclassified to be consistent with the current years' presentation.

9. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension fiakility, deferred autflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the State of California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and additions
to aor deductions from the PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the PERS. For this purpose, benetit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when dus and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Baiance Sheet
and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — fotal
governmental funds and net position — governmenial activities as reported In the government-
wide statement of net position. One element of that recanciliation explains that *capital assets are
not financial resources and are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $ 13,863,366
difference are as follows:

Capital assets $ 25322087
Less: Accumulated depreciation (11,458,721)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance - tofaf governmentat

funds to arrive at net position - governmental aclivities 13,366
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2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and 'Fund Financial Statements {Continued)

A. Explanation of Certain Differances between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
and the Government-Wide Statement of Net PosHion (Continued)

Another element of the reconcitiation explains that "long-term liabilities” are not due and payable
in the current period and are therefore not reported in the funds. The details of this $5,153,646
difference are as follows:

Long-Term Debl Obligations:

Spacial assessmant bonds $ 4,825,000
Compensated absences 328,646

Net adjustment to decrease fund balance total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - goverminental aclivities 5. (5,153.646)

B. Explanation of Certain differences betwesn the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balanges and the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changss in fund balances
includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — fotal governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental activilies as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities, One element of that reconciliation explaing that "Governmenrtal funds repori capital
cuflays as expendilures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of these assels is
allocated over their estimated useful ives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of
this $451,416 difference and other significant components of the difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 1,508,250
Depreciation expense (800,805)
Loss on disposal of capital assets {121,052)
Changes in net pension liability and related items (83,600)
Rapayment of long-term debt principal 130,000
Other itams (197,460}

Net adjustment to Increase net changes in fund balances -
fotal governmental funds fo arrive at changes in nef position
of govemmental acfivities $_ 435333

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A, Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis of consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all govemmental funds. Appropriations lapse al fiscal year end. The appropriated
budget is prepared by fund, functlon and department. The City Manager may make transfers of
appropriations within a departmeni. Transfers between depariments and other ¢changes require
City Council approval. The legal lavel of control is the department and fund level. The Council
made supplemental appropriations during the fiscal year. Encumbrance accounting is not
amployed in governmental funds. Expendilure budgets were excesded by the South Sonoma
Business Park Assessment Fund ($3,5683), and the landscape and lighting fund ($6,089). The
expendituras were funded by available resources.
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4. Detalled Notes on Aill Funds
A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments al June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Pooled demand deposits $ 3,906,375
Pooled investments (incudes $2,817,425 in fiduciary funds) 17,020,405
invesiments with trustees (includes $696,047 in fiduciary funds) 1,158,830

Totat deposits and investments $22,085610

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial cradit risk is the risk that in the avent of a bank failure,
the City's deposils may not be retumed to it. The City's policy for depuosits is that they will be made
only in instituions in California, they shall be insured or collateralized with United States backed
securities, and time certificates of deposit shall have & maturity of less than three years. At June 30,
2015, $4,055,588 of the City's bank balances of $ 4,305,588 was exposed o credit rigk as follows:

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging banks agent
but riot in the City's name; % 4,055 588

Invastments - At June 3G, 2015 the City had the following investments,

Investment Malurities Fair Value
State Invesiment Pool{LAIF} Average 232 days $ 15,710,110
Sonoma County Invesiment Pool Average 7981 days 389,265
BlackRock Provident T-Fund Shares Average 120 days 1,158,830
Prime Money Market Fund RBC Investor Average 120 days 1,766
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Averaga 2 years 415,264
Totals $ 18,179,235

interest Rafe Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates, the Cily's investment policy limits the City's Investment portfolio to maturities
prescribed in Sections 53600 through 53609 of the California Government Code which for the City is
securities with & maturity of five years or less at the time of purchase.

Credit Risk - Siate law limits investments in various securities {o certain level of risk ratings issusd
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. It is the City's policy {0 comply with State law
as regards securities ratings. The City's investment in mutual funds was rated Aaa by Moody's
investor Service. The State and County Investment Paols are unrated.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds {Continued)
A. Deposits and Investments{Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the
faiture of & counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are In the possession of an outside party, Of the City's $896,447 investment other
than the Pools and mutual funds, the entire $921,030 in underlying securities are held by the
investment's counterparty in the name of the Cily. The City's invesiment policy specifies that
securities are to be held by a third parly, other than the counterparty, in the City's name, whenever
possible. The investment in the State and County Pool and mutual funds are not subject to custadial
cradit risk because the investmenis are not evidenced by specific securities,

Noncurrent Cash and Cash Equivalents — The $745,148 restricted In the governmental activities
statement of net position represents resources in the Gity's debt service funds. The $6,163,822 in
the business-type activities statoment of net position represents capital improvement funds to be
used for funding major capital assets and facilities.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, net of the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Gther Major Nonmaijor Tolak

Fund Funds Funds Governmental Water Wastewater
Accounts % - $ - 5 - $ - $190,207 $ 292230
Taxes 829,937 - - 829,037 - -
Governments - - 262,213 262,213 - -
Definquencies - 141,301 - 111,301 - -
Notes and loans 28,000 - 550,697 578,697 - -
Assessments - 4,825,000 - 4,826,000 - -
Totals % 857,937 $ 4,836,301 $ 812,810 $ 6,607,148 $190,207 $ 202230

C. Interfund Transfers, receivables and payables

1. The composition of interfund transfers of June 30, 2015, is as follows:

Other
General Governmental Total

Transfers In: Fund Funds Transfers
Transfers Out:

General fund $ “ $ 652,403 $ 652,493
Debt service fund 5,000 - 5,000
Dther funds 516,475 - 516,475
Waterfwastewaler 45,500 45,000 90,500
Totals $ 566,975 § 697,493 $1,264,468

Tha primary transfers out of the nohmajor funds were made to provide funds to the City's general
fund for projects carried out by the general fund. The $303,750 loan from the wastewaler fund to the
general fund was made for temporary cash flow purposes,
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4, Detfailed Notes on All Funds {Continued)

2. The composition of interfund balances was:

Receivable Fund Nonmajor Payable Fund Amaount

General fund Grant fund 3 398,335
CDBG fund 29,543
Total § 425 B78

The advances was made for temporary cash flow purposes.

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity relating to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as

follows:

Govemmental activities:
Capltal assets, not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Tolal capital assels, not being depreciated

Capital assets, heing depreciated:
Buitdings

Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

improvemenis

Tolal capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated dapreciation for:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Vehicles
Improvements
Total accumulated depraciation
Total capital assets, being deprecialed, net

Governmerttal activities capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases  Ending Balance
¥ 4,701,860 § - $ - $ 4,701,960
2,714,767 285,866 - 3,000,633
7416,727 285,866 - 7,702,593
5,440,189 - - 5,440,189
772,167 162,654 - 934,821
844,976 116,295 {121,052) 840,219
9,460,830 943 435 - 10,404,265
16,518,162 1,222,384 (121,052} 17,619,494
(1,804,147} (136,005) - {1,940,152)
{766,811} {24,462} - (791,273)
{558,068) (81,000) - (639,068}
(7,528,880} {558,338) - {8,088,228)
{10,667,916) {800,805) - {11,458,721)
£,850,246 421,579 {121,052} 6,180,773
$ 13,276,973 % 707445 $ (121,082 $ 13,863,368

Construction in progress, at June 30, 2015, represents primarily cost incurred refated to
construction improvements to {he city's street system and the intermadal transit facility.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

0, Capital Assets

Capital asset activity relating to business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as

follows:

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assels, being depreciated:
Water wells

Reservoirs

lmprovements
Pipelines and collection system
Equipment

Totel capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water wells

Reservoirs
Improvements
Pipelines and collection system

Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assels, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
] - % - 8 - % -
1,200,746 53,161 " 1,258,807
1,200,746 59,161 - 1,259,907
1,379,408 82,811 - 1,462,219
1,650,971 - - 1,650,971
377,732 36,088 - 413,820
7,706,717 6,537 - 7,713,254
625,675 368,172 - 893, 847
11,740,503 493 608 - 12,234,114
{854,451) {34,375 - (888,826)
(601,278) {78,081) - (679,359)
(286,179) {13,447) - (299,626)
(3,293,688) (220,225) - (3,513,913)
(615,225} (23,021) - (638,246}
{5,650,821) {369,149) - (6,018,970)
6,0089,682 124,459 - 6,214,141
$ 7,290,428% 183,620% - % 7,474,048

bonstructlon in progress of $1,259,907 relates mainly to water tank, SCADA system and line

improvement projects.
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4, Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

D. Capital Assets {Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Infrastruciure -Streets

Total depreciation expense-governmantal activities

Business4ype activities:
Water
Wastewater

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities

E. Long-Term Debt

Special Assessment Bonds with Governmental Commitment

$ 324,805
136,108
338,892
$ 400,805
L 215,453
163,696
§ 369,149

The special assessment bonds ware issued in an original amount of $5,875,000 for the purpose of
facilitating a wetlands mitigation project. The bonds are secured solely by assessments levied
against property owners within the assessment district and from maonies on deposit in a reserve
fund, The Cilty has no obligation to advance funds for payment of bond debt service. The City has
indicated, however, that it may at its own option and in iis sole discretion elect to advancs funds to
pay bond debt service to the extent of delinquencies. The bonds consist of 6.50 percent term bonds
due September 2, 2033, The term bonds are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity

sommencing September 2, 2004. Future debt service is:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 135,000 $ 309,238 $ 444,238
2017 145,000 300,138 445,138
2018 155,000 292 698 447 659
2019 165,000 279,088 444,088
2020 175,000 268,038 443,938
2021-2025 1,080,060 1,162,778 2,242,778
2026-2030 1,455,000 747,667 2,202,667
2031-2034 1,835,000 207,180 1,742,180
Totals
$ 4,825,000 $ 3,658,636 $ 8,383,636
Long-term debt activity for the 2014 fiscal year was as foliows:
Due
Beginking Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balanoe One Year
Governmental Actlvities:
Special assessment bonds $ 4,955,000 - 3 130,000 $ 4,825,000 $ 135,000
Compensated absenses 253,399 135,247 60,000 328,646 60,000
Total $ 5,208,399 $ 135247 % 190,000 $ 5,153,646 $ 495,000

36




CITY OF COTAT
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 20156

5, Other Information
A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruclion of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance, The City,
due to the costs of available coverage, participates as a member of the Redwood Empire Municipal
Insurance Fund (REMIFY.REMIF provides Joint protection programs for public entiies covering
asutomobile, general liability, errors and omissions, property and workers compensation claims.
Under the pragram, the City has a $5,000 retention limit similar to a deductible with the REMIF being
responsible for losses abovs that amount up to $500,00C for liability losses, $1,000,000 for workers
compensation claims, and $25,000 for property damage. The Fund carries purchased excess
cormmercial liability insurance of $39.5 million in excess of its $500,000 limit, and a commaercial
property policy for $300 million. Financial information pertaining to REMIF can be obtained from its
administrative offices at 414 \W.Napa Street, Sonoma, California 95476,

Liabilities of the City are reported in the statement of net assets for the when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount
for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate
the claims liability is nol an exact amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation,
changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to
consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of
pay-outs), and other sconomic and social factors. The City's only exposure to claim liabilities would
be for losses, if any, not covered by REMIF. There have been no significant changas in insurance
coverages in fiscal 2015. Seltlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the past three fiscal
years. The City has no material claim llabllities at June 30, 2015.

B. Contingencies and Commitments

Litigation. The City is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting City business,
Adthough the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Cily's
counse! the resolution of thaese matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City,

Grants and alfocations. Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject fo audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal and stale govarnment. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds, The amount, if
any, of expenditures that may be disaliowed by the granlor cannol be delermined al this time,
although the Cily expeacts such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Landfill Remedigtion. The City has been nofified by the County that a leachate problem has been
identified at a central solid waste landfill site. Under a propased remediation plan, the City would be
required to share in and fund a portion of such environmental remediation costs, Preliminary
estimates are that the City's share of such costs could exceed $ 2 million. This matter has not yet
been resolved, and no liability has been recorded in these financial slatements pending resolution
and determination of the actual remediation costs and how and by whom those costs are to be
funded.
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5. Other information (Continued)
C. Jointly Governed Organizations and Operating Agreements

Jointly governed organizations are iegal entitles or other organizations that resuit from a
comfractual arrangement and that are owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants
as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the parlicipants retain an
ongoing financial interest or ongeing financial responsibility. The City Is a patticipant in the
following organizations other than the insurance authority described in the preceding notes. The
City is a parly to the following agreement agreements:

Santa Rosa Subregional Wastewater System. The City has an agreement with System for the
treatment of wastewater as the City does not own or operate its own wastewater treatment plant.
The City's obligations under the agreament are to pay to the System its share of the cosis of
operating the system and trealment of wastewater. The City records these payments as
operafing expenses in its wastewatsr enterprise fund

D. Public Employee Pension Plans

Plan Descriplion - The plans are & costsharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). The CalPERS
is governed by a 13 member Board of Administration with six elected members, three appointed
members and four ex officio members which include the State Treasurer, the Stale Conirolier,
the Director of the Caiifornia Department of Human Services and a designee of the State
Personnel Board,

Bensfits Provided - The CaIPERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement
benefits are defined as 2.7 percent of the employees final 12 months average compensation
times the employee's years of service (2.0 percent for safety employees) Employess with 10
years of continuous service are eligihle to retire at age 55 (age 50 for safely employees)
Employees are eligible for service-related disabilily benefits ragardiess of the length of service.
Five years of service is required for non-sarvice-related disability eligibility. Disability benefits are
determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an
actuarial reduction. Pre-relirement death benefits equal an employee’s final full-year salary. Both
plans provide for a 2 percent Cost of Living Adjustment {COLA). The public safety plan Is closed
to new entrants.

Contributions_— Section 20814 of the California Public Employses' Retirement Law (PERL})
requires 1hat the employer contribution rates for all public employees he determined an an
annual basis by the actuary and shall he effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in
the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS anhual aciuarial
valuation process, The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount nacessary to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount o finance
any unfunded acerued liability. The erployer is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially defermined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the measurement period
anding June 30, 2014 (the measurement date}, the average active employee contrlbution rate is
7.947 percent of annual pay, and the average empioyer contribution rate is 25.669 percent of
annual payroll (8.986 and 54.198 percent, respectively, for the safety plan). Contributions
{employer) to the plans in were § 883,716 for the year ended June 30, 2015,
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5. Other information (Continued)

D). Public Employee Pension Plans {Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred inflows. of
Resources Related to Pansions - At June 30, 2014 the City reported a Hability of $7,466,420 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial vaiuation as of June 30, 2013, The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating governments, actuarially delermined. At June 30, 2014,
the City's proportion was 0.05687 percent for its safety plan and 0.06261 for regular employess,
which was the same as its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013,

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014, the City recognized pension expense of
$250,968 for its safety plan and $244,838 for its non-safety plan. .At June 30, 2014, the Cily
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resourcas related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Hesources

Differencas between expeacted and aciual
experience $ - $ -
Changes in assumplions - -
Net difference between projected and actual
Earnings on pension plan investments - (1,387,542)
Changes in propoftions and differsnces belween

City contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 92,515 -
City contributions subsequent to the

Measurement 771,201 -

Totals $863,716 $ (1,387,542)

$771,201 is reported as deferred ocutflows of resources related o pensions from City contributions
subsequent fo the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in
the year ended June 30, 2016, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pensiorn expense as follows:

Deferred Cutflows

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 (Inflows) of Resources
2015 ${318,317)
2016 {3186,517)
2017 (321,277)
2018 (341,116)
2019 -
Thereafter -
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5. Other lnformation {Continued)

D. Public Employee Pension Plans {Continued}

Actuarial Assumptions — The lotal pension liability in the June 30, 2013 actuariat valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurernent:

Inflation 2.78 percent

Salary increases 3.0 percent

Investment rate of return 7.50 parcent, net of pension plan
investment expense, including
inflation

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to selary increase,
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Sludy can be obfained at the CalPERS website
under Forms and Publications.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buiiding-
block method in which hest-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns,
net of pension plan invesiment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaiPERS took into account both shortterm and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pansion cash flows. The expecled rate
of relurn was then set equivalent to a single equivalent rate calculated by CalPERS and rounded
down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The target allocalion and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

New Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation — Years 1-10 Years 11+
Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 571%
Global Fixed Income 19.0 .99 243
Inflation Sensitive 8.0 45 3,38
Private Equity 12.0 6.83 6.95
Resl Estate 11.0 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure & Forestand 3.0 4,50 5.09
Liquidity 2.0 (.55) {1.08)

Discount Rate — The discount rale used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of & discount rate for
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the festing, none of the tested plans
run out of assets. Tharefore, the cuirent 7.50 percent discount rate is adeqguate and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long-term expected discount rale of 7.50
percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employee Retirement Fund.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension abilify to changes in the discount rate
— The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liahility calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the Cily's proportionate share of the net pension
lkability would be if it were caleulated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6,50
percent) or 1-percéntage higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate:
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5, QOther information (Continued)

D .Public Empioyee Pension Plans {Continued)

1% Currant 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{6.50%) {7.50%) (B.50%)
City's proportionate
share of the net pension liability

Safety first tier $5,223,072 $3,538,662 $2,150,780
Safely second tier 17,056 9,911 4,024
Non-safety first tier 5,832,344 3,886,150 2,289,293
Non-safely second tler 20,841 11,697 4,109
Totals $11,093,313 $7,4586,420 $4,448,206

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is availabls in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

E. Restricted Net Position and Nonspendable Fund Balances

The & 5,253,384 restricted amount in the governmental activities and the $6,153,822 in the
business-type activiies statement net position represent amounts to be used only for specific
purposes which restrictions are imposed by laws, formal agreements or olher governments,

Nenspendable fund balances consisted of the following:

General
Purpoge Fund Other Funds
Notas Receivable 5 - § -
Prepayments 680,517 -
$ 60,617 $ -

F.  Post- Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Flan Description, The City administers the city’s retired employees health care plan, a single
employer definad benefit health care plan, The plan provides medical benefits to a limited number of
eligible retired employeas, The plan is closed to current and future Gity employees. City resclufions
and agreaments assign the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions {o the City. A
saparate OPEB trust account has not been established by the City for the OPEB Plan,

Funding Poficy, The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and
may he amended by the City. The required contribution is based on a projected pay as you go
financing requirement, with additional amounts to prefund benefits determined annually by the City
Council. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the City contributed $25,007 of current premiums
{100% of tolal premiums) and zero to prefund benefits. Plan members receiving benefits contributed
no amounts of total pramiums,
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5. Other Information (Continued)

F. Post- Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions {Continued)

Annual OFPEB Costs and Net OPEB QObligation. The city's annual other post employment benefit cost
{expense) Is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially dstermined in accordance with the parameters of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement Number 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an ongoing
basls, Is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded fiabilities over a
period not to excead 30 years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB
costs for the year, the amounts actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the Cily’s net OPEB
obiligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution {ARC) $ 31,122
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,298
Adjustments to the ARC (2,284)
Annual OPEB expense 31,136
Cantributions made ( 25,007)
Change in net QPEB obligation 6,129
Net OPEB Obligation , beginning of year 57 459
Net, OPEB obligation, end of year 3 63,588

The Cily's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost confributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the last two fiscal years was as follows;

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2013 $29,782 58.1% $47.874
Jurie 30, 2014 $30,514 68.6% $57,459
June 30, 2015 $31,136 80.3% $63,588

Funding status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
the plan was zero funded. The actuarial accrued Fability for benefits was $482,463 and the actuarial
value of plan assels was zero, resuiting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$482,463. The covered payroll (the annual payroll of active employees coverad by the plan) was
$2.438,709 and tha UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll was 19.8 percent.)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve eslimates of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and health care trends. Amounts delermined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annuel required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as aclual resulls are compared with past expectations and new estimates are mads about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplemental information,
following the notes to these financlal statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assels are increasing or decreasing over time relative to acluarial
liahilifias for benefits.
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5. Other Information {Continued})

F. Post- Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions {Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members)
Includes the types of bensfits provided at the time of each valuation and ths historical pattern of
sharing costs between the employer and the plan members to that point in time. The actuarial
melhods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed lo reduce the effects of
short term volatility in actuarial fiabilities and the actuarial value of plan assets, consislent with
the longterm perspeciive of the calculations.

in the June 30, 2013 valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost mathod was used under
the Alternate Measurement Method. The actuarial assumptions include a 4 percent rate of return
based ch assumed long-term returns on employer assets, An annual health care trend rate of
8.6 percent initially decreasing to 5§ percent in year 2022. There were no plan assets at the
valuation date, The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of payrolls over 26 years, the
rernaining amortization period al June 30, 2044,

F. Successor Agency Trust For Assets of Former Redevelopment Agency
1. The Dissolution Process

On December 29, 2011, the California Suprems Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X26 (the Bill) that
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action
impacted the financial reporting entity of the City of Cotatl that previously had reported a
redevelopment agency within the financial reporting entity of the city as a blended component unit.
The bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of
logal government will agree to serve as the successor agency lo hold assets untit they are
distributed to other units of State and local government. The City Council of Cotati electad to have
the City become the Successor Agency for the former radavelopment agency.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevslopment agencles in the Stals
of California cannot enter inlo new projects, obligations, or commitments. Subject to the control of a
newly established oversight Board, remaining asseis can only be used to pay enforceable
obligations in existence at the date of dissolution {(including the completion of any unfinished projects
that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitiments).

in future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocaled revenues in the amount that is
necessary lo pay the annual eslimated annual instaliment payments on enforceable obligations of
the former redevelopment agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior agency have been
paid in full and all assets have been liquidated.

The bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriely of any {ransfers
of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that ocourred after January 1,
2011. If the public body that received such transfers is not cantractually committed to a third party for
the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the
available assets to be transferred to the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bl

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former
redevelopment agency due to the Gity and others are valid enforceable obligations payable by the
successor agency trust under the requirements of the Bill. The City's position on these issues is not
a position of setifed faw and there is considerable fegal uncertainty regarding these issues. 1t is
reasonable possible that a legal determination may be made at a later dale by an appropriate judicial
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authority or other authorized body that would resolve any of the dissolution matters unfavorably to
the City,

5. QOther Information {Continued)
G Successor Agency Trust for Assets of Former Redevelopment Agency (Continued)

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill {as modified by the California Supreme Court on
December 29, 2011} all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and
ceased to operale as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012. Afier the date of dissolution, the assets
and financial activities of the dissoived redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary fund (the
privaie ~purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the Clty of Cotati, The assets and liabilities
of the private purpose trust are excluded from the government-wide statement of net position of the
City of Cotati and the Statement of Activities of the City of Cotati because fiduclary fund assets are
not available in any fashion for use by the Gily,

2. Enforceable Obligations
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 2004-Series A
In Juns, 2004, the Cotatl Facilittes Financing Authority issued $5,610,000 in its 2004 Series A tax
allocation refunding bonds. The Authority entered into a loan agreement with the Cily's
Redevelopment Agency wherein the Agency in substance is to pay the principal and interest on the
bonds.

Future debt service requirements are;

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 245,000 $ 172,873 $ 417873
20417 255,000 162,559 417,559
2018 265,000 149,596 414,596
2019 280,000 136,855 416,855
2020 290,000 123,388 413,388
2021-2025 1,100,000 418,500 1,618,500
2026-2030 - 307,500 307,500
2031-2035 800,000 238,314 1,138,314
2036 300,000 7,688 307,688
Totals § 3635000 $ 1,717,273 $ 5352273

Payment of bond debt service on the 2004 tax allocation bonds was secured by a first pledge and
fien on all of the former Agency's revanues, Such revenues were the tax increment alfocated to the
project area less statutory housing obligations and the County, Library, and Fire District's share of
such tax increment. Payment of interest and principal on the bonds is aiso insured by a financial
guaranly policy. Interest and principal on the bonds is payable each March 1 and September 1
through 2036.The bonds bear irderest at rates from 1,60 to 5,125 percant.

Tax Alfocation Bonds 2001 Serigs A

On November 14, 2001, The City's former Redeveiopment Agency issued § 6,860,000 in
subordinate tax allocation bonds, series 2001A, to advance refund and retire two capital leases and
provide additional project funds. The tax allocation bonds consisted of $1,510,000 in serial bonds
hearing interest at rates from 2 percent to 4.5 percent maturing each September 1 through 2021,
$2,050,000 in term bonds bearing interest at § percent and maturing September 1, 2026, and
$3,400,000 in 5 percent term bonds maturing September 1, 2031. The term bonds are subject to
mandatory sinking fund early redemption. Fulure debt service requirements are;
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5. Other Information {Continued)
G. Successor Agency Trust for Assets of Former Redevelopment Agency (Continued)

3. Enforceable Qbligations (Continued)

Fiscal Year Principal interasi Total

2016 $ 90,000 $ 309,633 § 309633
207 00,000 305,673 395,673
2018 105,600 301,330 406,330
2019 120.000 296,268 416,268
2020 135,000 280,530 425,530
2021-2025 1,235,000 1,325,608 2,560,608
2026-2030 3,080,000 765,500 3,845,500
2031-2032 1,460,000 74,000 1,534,000
Totals $ 5,315,000 $ 3,668,542 $9,983,542

Tax Aflocation Bonds Fledged Revenues

The former redevelopment agency had pladged future tax increment revenues to pay debt service
on the 2001 and 2004 tax allocation bonds, Total principal and interest remaining on the successor
agency's bonds is $15,335,815.

Changes in Enforceable Obligafions:

Changes in enforceable obligations for the year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Due in
Private Purpose Trust Fund: Beginning Additions Deletions Ending One Year
2001 tax allocation bonds, series A $ 6,400,000 $ - $ 85,000 $ 6,315,000 $ 90,000
2004 tax aliocation bonds, series A 3,865,000 - 230,000 3835000 245,000
Total $ 10,265,000 § - § 315,000 $ 5,050,000 $ 335,000

4, Cash and Investments Held in Trust

The Cash and investments of the Successor Agency at June 30, 2015 consisted of $2,817,425 in
funds held by the Cily of Gotati and primarily invested in the Local Agency Invest Fund (LAIF) of the
State of Galifornia. In addition, there was $695,047 held by a bank trustee primarily in a reserve
account for the 2001 tax allocation bonds.

5. Long-Term Notes Receivabla
The $1,289,57" consist primarily of long-term notes due in 2040, bearing interesl at 3 percent per

annum and with payments due to the extent of residual receipts, if any, from housing projects
previously constructed with the loan proceeds. No fixed annual repayments are required on the

notes.
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5. Other Information (Continued)

(. Change in Accounting Principle

The City in fiscal 2015 implemented the Governmental Accouniing Standards Board {GASB)
Statement Number 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The implementation
of this accounling standard rasulted in the restatement of the beginning of year net pasition of
the City's governmental and business-type aclivilies as follows:

Gavernmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Government

Net position, June 30, 2014

As originally reported $22,701,724 $17,311,012 $40,012,736
Change in accounting principle:

Beginning of year net pension

Liability (NPL) {7.476,458) (1,262,842) (8,769,300}
Beginning year nat pension
Deferred outflows 776,269 112,984 889,253

Net position, June 30, 2014
As Restated $16,001,535 516,131,154 $32,132,680
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Required Supplementary information
CITY OF COTATI
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Furid
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts

Variance wilh
Final Budgat
Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 3,019,148 $ 3,171,847 $ 3,171,847 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Property taxes 1,318,160 1,318,160 1,266 681 (51,479
Sales laxes 3,530,847 3,530,847 3,615,732 84,885
Other taxes 107,300 107,300 110,345 3,045
License permits 450,400 450,400 402,151 (48,249)
Fines and forfelts 84,050 B2,659 86,703 14,044
Interest and rents 88,100 88,100 92,831 4,731
Intergovernmenta 62,900 62,900 118,837 56,037
Charges for services 121,150 121,150 169,935 48,785
Miscellansous 89,000 89,000 188,497 90,497
Transfers in 1,019,029 1,019,028 566,975 {452,054)
Amounts available for
charges to appropriations 9,890,082 10,041,362 £,800,634 {240,758)
Charges to appropriations:
General government:
City Coungcil 69,350 87,722 73,057 14,665
City Manager/City Clerk 360,700 361,603 366,473 (4,870)
Adminitrative services 237,400 242,030 234,293 7,737
Legal servioces 195,000 195,000 127,087 67,913
Non-Departmental 540,550 646,688 364,325 282,363
Public information services 46,000 51,000 240 50,760
Gommunity development 410,525 412,106 481,208 (69,102)
Economic develapment 165,800 158,800 128,565 27,235
Public safety:
Police 2,820,300 2,820,435 2,801,788 18,647
Public works:
Straets 380,900 381,525 351,828 29,697
Enginesring 208,250 207,779 896,071 114,708
Storm water 68,700 68,700 32,584 38,116
Park maintenance 220,580 222,325 165,299 57,0268
Government bulidings 88,550 108,096 112,610 4,514)
Capital outlay 1,312,800 1,175,750 812,008 363,652
Debt service (other begin) - - 36,427 (36,427)
Transfers out 652,493 652,493 652,493 -
Total charges to appropriations 7,765,868 7,789,052 5,836,448 952,608
Fursf Balance, June 30 $ 2,124,214 § 2,252,340 $ 2,664,188 $ 711,848

47




Required Supplementary nformation

CITY OF COTATI

Budgetary Comparison Schadule - General Fund

Note to RSI

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Note A, Explanation of Difference Between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP

Revenues and Expenditures:

Sources/inflows resources;
Actuai amounts "available for appropriation from budgetary
comparison schedtile:

Differences - budget o GAAP,;
The fund balance at the heginning of the year is a budgstary
resource but Is not a current year revenus for financtal reporting
purposes
Transfers In are a budgetary resource but are not a current year
revenue for financial reporting purposes
Total revenues as reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual amounts "total charges to appropriations” from the budgetary
comparison schedule

Differences - budgest to GAAP:
Transfars out are a budgetary use hut are not a current year
axpadnitures for financial reporiing purposes
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$ 9,800,634

(3,171,847)
(565,975)

$ 6,061,812

$ 6,836,446

(852,493)
3 6,183,953




Required Supplemantary Information
CITY OF COTATI
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Inclusionary Housing Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
\ariance with
Final Budget
Posilive
Qriginal Final Actual Amourts (Negative)
Fund Balance, Juiy 1 $ 3,431,714 § 3,437,189 $ 3,437,189 5 ~
Resources (inflows);
Chargas for services:
Housing in feu foes - - 1,165 1,165
Interest 6,800 6,800 8,660 1,860
Amaunts available for
charges to appropriations 3,438,514 3,443,989 3,447,014 3.025
Charges to appropriations:
Community Development:
Current:
Administration,
Legal 5,000 5,000 1,425 3,675
Subskdy costs - - 165,986 (165,986)
Housing fee and housing
element updates 63,000 63,000 38,000 25,000
Total charges to appropriations 68,000 68,000 205,411 {137.411)
Fund Balance, Jjune 30 $ 3,370,514 $ 3,375,989 $ 3,241,603 § (134,386)
Note A. Explanation of Differences Between Budgstary Inflows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures;
Actual amounts available for appropriation: $ 3447014
The fund balance at the beginning of the yearis a
budgetary financial resource, but is not current
revenue for financial reporting purposes {3,487,189)
Total revenues as reported in the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances  $ 9,825
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Reguired Supplementary information
CITY OF COTATI
Other Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions
Schadule of Funding Progress
June 30, 2016
{Amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial UAAL (Excess)
Acluarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded as a Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL)-  {overfunded) Funded Ratio Covered Payroll of Covered
Date Assats (a) Entry Aga (b) AAL (h-3) {a/b) (c) Payrol [{(b-a)/c]
71/2009 $ - § 859654 § 659,654 0.0% $ 2,190,328 30.1%
6/30/2013 % - $ 482,463 § 482,463 0.0% $§ 2,436,709 10.8%
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CITY OF COTATI

Schedule of The City of Cotati's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabiloity

(Last Ten Fiscal Years)
As of June 30, 2015

Plan Measurement Year
June 30, 2014

Misceliarreous Plan {First Tier) {Second Tier)
Plat's proportion of the net pension liability 0.068261% 0.00019%
Flan's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3896,150 §% 11,697
Plan's overed employee payroll $ 1,139,150 $ 318,283
Plan's proportionate share of the net pension lability

as a percentage of covered employee payroll 342.02% 3.68%
Plar’s fiduciary net position {City's proportionate share) $10,698,713 $ 57,227
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 73.30% 83.03%
Safety Plan {First Tier) {Second Tier)
Plan's proportion of the net pension [lability 0.05687% 0.00016%
Ptan's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,588,662 $ 9,811
Plan's overed employee payroll $ 658728 $§ 107,837
Plan's proportionate share of the net pansion liabitity

as a percentage of covered employee payroll 536.38% 9.19%
Plan's fiduciary het position $ 9,036,488 % 43,430
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pansion liability 71.88% 81.42%

Notes to the schedule:

Benefit changes: In fiscal 2015 there were no benefit changes.

Changes in assumptions:In fiscal 2018, there were no chages in assumptions

Last Ten Years: Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st yaar of implementation, therefore only one year is shown,




CITY OF COTATI

Schedule of The City of Cotati's Contributions
Fublic Employee's Retirement Plans

(Last Ten Fiscal Years)

As of June 30, 2015

PLAN Measurement Year
June 30, 2014

Miscelfaneous Plan First Tier Second Tier

Contractually required contribution $ 371,451 $ 32,064

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 3 (371,451} §&  (32,084)
Contribution deficiency {excess} $ - B -

City's covered employee payroll $ 1,139,150 $ 318,283

Contributions as 4 percentage

of coverad employee payrolt 32.61% 10.07%
Safety Plan

Contractually required contribution 3 456,138 $ 29,600

Contributions in relation to the

confractually required contribution $ (456,138) $§ (28,800}
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - $ -

City's covered employee payroll & 859,728 $ 107,837

Contributions as a percentage

of covered employeae payroli 69.14% 27.45%
Notes to the schedule:

Plan valuation date: June 30, 2013

Last Ten Years: Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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